
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 

Music & Drama

Date: WEDNESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER 2019
Time: 11.00 am
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS
Members: Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)

Randall Anderson (Deputy Chairman)
John Chapman
Ann Holmes

Enquiries: Greg Moore 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at 1pm
N.B. Part of the meeting may be subject to audio or visual recording

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



2

AGENDA

**N.B. THE FIRST 15 MINUTES OF THIS MEETING WILL TAKE THE FORM OF AN 'IN 
CAMERA' SESSION WITH COMMITTEE MEMBERS, THE INTERNAL AUDITOR AND 

THE TOWN CLERK ONLY PRESENT**

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

3. PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 11 
September 2019. 

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 4)

4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS
Report of the Town Clerk.

For Information
(Pages 5 - 6)

5. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT
Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management. 

For Information
(Pages 7 - 28)

6. DEEP DIVE SCHEDULE
Report of the Principal.

For Decision
(Pages 29 - 30)

7. DEEP DIVE INTO THE CONTINUING REGISTRATION CONDITIONS FOR 
REGISTRATION WITH THE OFFICE FOR STUDENTS
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 31 - 46)

8. INTERPRETATION OF OFFICE FOR STUDENTS GUIDANCE CONCERNING THE 
INDEPENDENCE OF MEMBERS
Joint report of the Comptroller & City Solicitor and the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management.

For Information
(Pages 47 - 50)

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & RISK 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE



3

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Part 2 – Non-Public Agenda

12. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES
To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 11 September 2019. 

For Decision
(Pages 51 - 52)

13. RISK REGISTER
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 53 - 94)

14. AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT
Report of the Chairman. 

For Decision
(Pages 95 - 104)

15. OFFICE FOR STUDENTS ACCOUNTS DIRECTION FOR 2018/19
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 105 - 128)

16. DRAFT REPORTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
JULY 2019
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 129 - 182)

17. ANNUAL ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN
Report of the Principal. 

For Information
(Pages 183 - 184)

18. OFFICE FOR STUDENTS (OFS) ANNUAL ACCOUNTABILITY RETURN 2019 - 
FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
Report of the Principal.

For Information
(Pages 185 - 196)



4

19. GUILDHALL SCHOOL BUDGET REPORT - 2020/21
Report of the Principal. 

For Information
(Pages 197 - 202)

20. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

21. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS OF THE GUILDHALL SCHOOL OF MUSIC & DRAMA

Wednesday, 11 September 2019 

Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board 
of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama held at Committee Room - 

2nd Floor West Wing, Guildhall on Wednesday, 11 September 2019 at 1.45 pm

Present

Members:
Marianne Fredericks (Chairman)
Randall Anderson

John Chapman
Ann Holmes

In Attendance
Vivienne Littlechild

Officers:
Lynne Williams - Principal, Guildhall School of Music and Drama
Katharine Lewis - Secretary & Dean of Students, Guildhall School of Music 

and Drama
Jonathon Poyner - Director, Operations & Buildings, Guildhall School of 

Music and Drama and Barbican Centre
Niki Cornwell - Chamberlain's Department
Graeme Hood - Chamberlain’s Department
Matt Lock - Head of Internal Audit
Cirla Peall - Internal Audit
Greg Moore - Town Clerk’s Department

1. APOLOGIES 
There were no apologies.

The Chairman took the opportunity, on behalf of the Committee, to express her 
sincere gratitude to Neil Constable. Neil had served on the Board of Governors 
for many years, after which time he had continued to serve on the Audit & Risk 
Management Committee as an external Member until his recent resignation. 
She thanked him sincerely for his many contributions and dedication over the 
years and advised that she would be writing to him separately to thank him 
formally on the Committee’s behalf.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
There were no declarations. 

3. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
The Chairman reminded Members that, following Graham Packham’s election 
as Deputy Chairman of the Board of Governors and his departure from the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Audit & Risk Management Committee, this Committee now lacked a Deputy 
Chairman.  

Accordingly, the Committee proceeded to elect a Deputy Chairman for the year 
ensuing. The Town Clerk read a list of Members eligible to stand and Randall 
Anderson, being the only Member expressing his willingness to serve, was duly 
elected as Deputy Chairman.

4. PUBLIC MINUTES 
The public minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 16 April 2019 were 
approved, subject to a correction to the Director of Operations & Buildings’ job 
title. 

5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
Governors received a report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management providing an update on Internal Audit matters.

The Head of Internal Audit advised that the implementation of 
recommendations from previous audits was progressing well, with the School 
having undertaken significant activity since the last meeting. He was also 
pleased to report that there had been highly constructive dialogue with the 
School over the summer period which had enabled the collaborative agreement 
of a new audit plan and a timetable for forthcoming activity.

It was clarified that the Student Affairs annual report actions listed in the report 
should state October rather than September as the relevant target date, as the 
requisite information would not be available in time to facilitate September 
completion. In addition, it was agreed that the scheduled Data Futures audit 
would need to be removed from the 2020/21 audit schedule and a “to be 
confirmed” status ascribed to it, as there was not yet certainty from Government 
as to when this this scheme would be introduced.

It was agreed that, in future, dates should be set out in the report instead of 
referring to quarters, as there was a difference between the School’s year and 
the financial year, which could lead to confusion.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE AUDIT & 
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
There was one item:

Co-option of External Members
The Chairman noted that the Committee’s terms of reference granted the ability 
to co-opt Individuals with relevant skills directly onto the committee to assist it in 
fulfilling its duties. Following Neil Constable’s resignation, she suggested that it 
would be beneficial to advertise with the intent to appoint at least two 

Page 2



individuals, with suitable expertise of audit and risk in the higher education, and 
the arts sector. 
 
The committee unanimously agreed to the advertising for at least two 
individuals with relevant skills to be co-opted onto the Guildhall School of Music 
and Drama’s Audit & Risk Management Committee. The Remuneration & 
Nominations Committee should be informed of the decision and involved in the 
process and that officers should liaise to produce suitable wording for an advert 
and identify publications in which to advertise, as well as to clarify the 
processes and timetable for recruitment. 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
RESOLVED – That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

9. NON PUBLIC MINUTES 
RESOLVED, that the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 16 April 2019, 
be approved.

10. RISK REGISTER 
Governors received a report of the Principal regarding the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama Risk Register. 

11. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
There were no questions. 

12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 
There were no urgent items. 

The meeting ended at 3.00 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Greg Moore 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1399
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Guildhall School of Music and Drama Audit and Risk Sub-Committee

Public Actions Sheet

Action 
Number Date Action Responsible 

Officer Progress Update

1/2019/P  11th 
September 

2019

The committee unanimously agreed to 
the advertising for at least two 

individuals with relevant skills to be co-
opted onto the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama’s Audit & Risk 

Management Committee

Town Clerk / Head 
of Internal Audit /  

Principal 

Draft wording for a role description 
and advert has been produced and is 
expected to be finalised with adverts 

live by the end of November.

1/2019/NP 11th 
September 

2019

Deep-dive item on OfS continued 
registration requirements to be 

produced; annual schedule of deep-
dive items to be produced

Secretary & Dean 
of Students 

Reports on agenda for 13 November 
2019 meeting.

2/2019/NP 11th 
September 

2019

Principal to provide an oral update on 
the Augar Report in 2020.

Principal Oral update to be provided when 
position clearer during 2020.

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 6



Committee: Date:
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Guildhall 
School of Music and Drama 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and 
Drama

14 November 2019

19 November 2018

Subject: 
Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion

Public

Report of:
Head of Audit and Risk Management

Report Author:
Cirla Peall, Audit Manager

For Information

Summary

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Audit Code of Practice, part of 
the Office for Students terms and conditions of funding higher education institutions. 
It provides your Committee with details of the Internal Audit work undertaken at the 
Guildhall School of Music and Drama (‘the School’) in respect of the academic year 
ended 31st July 2019 with the intention of providing you with an annual audit 
opinion.  Appendix 1 provides a summary of audit outcomes which have informed 
this report. Appendix 2 provides the detail of School audits finalised since the 
September 2019 meeting of this Committee.

The Head of Audit and Risk Management opinion for 2018-19 is that the School’s 
systems of risk management, control and governance, economy, effectiveness and 
efficiency are generally robust and can be reasonably relied upon to ensure that 
School’s objectives are achieved.

Delivery of the 2019-20 audit plan is now underway and there is a strong focus on 
completion by 31st July 2020.  At the time of preparing this report no significant 
issues have been identified in respect of 2019-20 audits which adversely affect the 
Head of Audit and Risk Management’s opinion. 

Internal Audit follow-up work in respect of high priority recommendations during 
2018-19 and 2019-20 to date has confirmed implementation of high priority 
recommendations, as well as identifying slippage in implementation resulting in 
revised target deadlines being set. Internal Audit recognises that the live 
recommendations position will fluctuate during the year due to finalised audits 
resulting in new recommendations and closure of recommendations once 
implementation has been demonstrated.  Appendix 3 provides a breakdown in 
respect of the current position, as at. 31/10/2019. 

Recommendation

Members are asked to note the Head of Audit Opinion in respect of 2018-19, 
the work that Internal Audit have undertaken, the live high priority 
recommendations position, and to offer any observations.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Main Report

Background

1. Internal Audit plays a role in providing the required assurance on internal controls 
through delivery of its risk-focused audit plan which forms part of a three-year 
strategy. This is reinforced by consultation with the School’s Audit and Risk 
Management Committee, the Principal and members of the School’s 
management team on perceived risk, any areas of concern and a follow-up audit 
regime which focuses on any high priority (red and amber) recommendations.

2. The Internal Audit Section operates in accordance with the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards.  The Internal Audit Charter reflects that the work of Internal 
Audit covers the entire control environment of the City of London Corporation, of 
which the Guildhall School of Music and Drama is an institutional department. 
The scope of work encompasses risk management, control and governance with 
due regard for aspects of Value for Money i.e. economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

3. The Committee receives a report on an annual basis from the Head of Audit and 
Risk Management on the extent that the School can rely on its systems of internal 
control and to provide reasonable assurance that the School’s objectives will be 
achieved efficiently.  Annually the Committee considers the audit plan for the 
following year and the three-year audit strategy, focusing on coverage of the 
School’s key operations.  Additionally, regular Internal Audit Update Reports are 
received by this Committee containing the detail of the agreed scope for 
individual assignments (as per the finalised terms of reference), a summary of 
outcomes for finalised audits, and high priority recommendation status updates.

4. The School’s main accounting and payroll systems are provided by the City of 
London Corporation. These systems are subject to periodic review by the Internal 
Audit Section and at the time of audit were considered by both Internal Audit and 
the City’s external auditors to provide a high level of internal control.  

5. This report includes a summary of audit findings for reviews undertaken during 
the financial year to 31st July 2019, including ‘corporate’ (City of London 
Corporation) audits which provide assurance over central systems / processes 
which are relevant to the School. No issues have arisen specifically in respect of 
the School from corporate audits. 

Current Position

Internal Audit Plan and Annual Opinion 2018-19 

6. A schedule of Internal Audit work informing the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
Management’s opinion can be found in Appendix 1.  Outcomes have previously 
been reported to this Committee in respect of the School’s audits with the 
exception of Academic Programme Development and Production Arts Students’ 
Cash Floats.  Summary audit outcome information in respect of both of these 
audits is contained in Appendix 2.

Page 8



Risk Management Activities

7. The corporate Risk Management Strategy aligns with the key principles of ISO 
31000: Risk Management Standard and the UK Government’s Management of 
Risk Guide. The Strategy emphasises risk management as a key element within 
the City Corporation’s systems of corporate governance and establishes a clear 
system for the evaluation of risk and escalation of emerging issues to the 
appropriate scrutiny level It also defines the roles and responsibilities of officers, 
senior management and Members. 

8. The Risk Management Group, consisting of senior managers representing all 
departments, includes the Guildhall School of Music and Drama. 

9. Strategic decisions on risk management are made by the Summit Group. They 
receive a quarterly update on both corporate and top red departmental level risks. 

10.The Chief Officer Risk Management Group, working on behalf of the Summit 
Group, meets quarterly to review, in depth, the corporate risk register and report 
their findings to the Summit Group when they consider the quarterly risk update 
report. 

11.In addition to receiving quarterly risk update reports, the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee has adopted a cycle of regular departmental risk 
challenge sessions, with Chief Officers and their respective Committee Chairmen. 
These are one-hour long sessions where the Chief Officer discusses with the 
Committee the department’s arrangements for managing risk as well as the key 
risks it faces. In July 2019 the School’s Principal attended the Committee’s 
informal risk challenge session.

12.The Committee also undertake deep dives of corporate risks. In 2018/9, there 
were 10 corporate risk deep dive reports. 

Head of Audit Opinion

13.The Head of Audit and Risk Management provides the following audit opinion, 
based on Internal Audit work undertaken in 2018-19, whereby the Guildhall 
School’s systems of risk management, control and governance, and 
economy, effectiveness and efficiency are generally robust and can be 
reasonably relied upon to ensure that objectives are achieved.  It is further 
noted that a number of the recommendations arising from our work have not yet 
been implemented.

Internal Audit Plan 2019-20 

14.Delivery of the 2019-20 audit plan is underway and there is a strong focus on 
completion by 31st July 2019.  The audits in respect of Academic Programme 
Development and Production Arts Students’ Cash Floats were undertaken early 
enough in the 2019-20 Audit Plan year (i.e. April to March) to help inform the 
School’s Audit Opinion for the 2018-19 academic year. 

Page 9



15.The audits of Facilities Management and Maintenance (Barbican and Guildhall 
School) and Internationalisation have not been initiated.  Internal Audit will initiate 
planning for both of these assignments in November 2019. 

Fraud Risk Management

16.The draft report has been circulated in respect of this audit which examined 
mechanisms are in operation for fraud risk management across the Guildhall 
School. In particular, the audit sought assurance that:

 A clear framework is in operation for identifying, assessing, mitigating 
and monitoring fraud risks;

 Arrangements are in operation for reporting to Governors and Senior 
Management on the effectiveness of fraud risk management;

 A fraud aware culture is promoted through:
o determining and communicating appropriate routes through which 

suspected or actual fraud can be reported and; 
o taking appropriate actions to implement lessons learned from known 

fraud cases.
 Procedures have been developed and communicated to all key staff, 

clearly depicting what is expected in areas of the business activity with a 
high fraud risk, for example procurement, cash income collection, 
equipment management, and declarations of interest / gifts and 
hospitality. The audit also sought assurance that appropriate training has 
been delivered to staff in these high fraud risk areas. 

17.Finalisation of this audit is anticipated by the end of November 2019.

Budget-Setting

18.The draft report has been circulated in respect of this audit which sought to verify 
that robust budget-setting arrangements are in place as follows: 

 There is a budget setting guidance in place.
 There is a timetable in place and this is communicated to the staff involved in 

the budget setting process.
 The budget is based on accurate historic financial data, robust assumptions 

and takes account of the best estimate of the School’s financial requirement 
and income.

 Any efficiency savings factored into the budget are supported with a plan on 
how that will be achieved.

 Adequate consideration is given to how the budget will support the School’s 
medium-term strategic plan.

 Budget consultation takes place to ensure that the budget is realistic from an 
operational perspective and proposed budget is challenged to ensure that the 
financial resources are allocated and used in a most efficient manner.

 The budget is formally approved.

19.Finalisation of this audit is anticipated by the end November 2019.
   

Page 10



Estates Strategy

20.Internal Audit follow-up work in 2018-19 confirmed implementation of a key 
recommendation from the Sundial Court Lease Renewal Project Governance 
audit - finalised in 2017-18 – and related to development of an Accommodation 
Strategy. Follow-up testing confirmed that the School’s wider Estates Strategy 
was signed off by the School’s Management Team and subsequently presented 
to the Board in February 2019.  The Strategy document:

 Reflects its link with the School’s Strategic Aims;
 Details the principles defining the School’s approach to ‘Estates’;
 Categorises accommodation need and provides priorities for space use;
 Provides an overview of the short, medium and long-term approaches to 

delivery of the Strategy;
 Sets out the process for determining future need, for example as a result of 

new courses or activities.
 Confirms the governance and reporting arrangements.

21.The Strategy document also highlights that the School should be alert to 
particular opportunities as and when they arise; one such development 
represented an opportunity for Internal Audit to test application of the Strategy in 
practice and this – development of the associated business case - was 
incorporated within the scope of audit for 2019-20.  Audit testing was focused on 
examination of the documentation supporting statements within the high-level 
Strategy document and how the principles of the Strategy had been applied in 
relation to the recent business case.  Audit fieldwork has been completed and exit 
discussions held; the draft report will be circulated in November 2019.

Recommendations Implementation

22. Regular Internal Audit follow-up activity within 2018-19 has confirmed 
implementation of seventeen high priority recommendations related to the 
School.  Revised target timescales had been supplied in respect of twelve of 
these recommendations as a result of implementation slippage, four of which 
were outside the control of the School as they related to finalisation of a corporate 
contract. 

23.In terms of the current position, there has been an increase in agreed live high 
priority recommendations from ten amber reported to the September 2019 
meeting of this Committee, to thirteen amber as at the end of October 2019; the 
three additional recommendations arose from a recently finalised report. Detailed 
recommendation statuses are shown at Appendix 3 and reflect that of these 
thirteen: 

 The three additional recommendations arose from the audit of Production Arts 
Students’ Cash Floats.

 Revised target timescales have been supplied in respect of three 
recommendations since the September 2019 meeting of this Committee as a 
result of implementation slippage.

Page 11



 Revised target timescales are required for demonstrating full implementation 
in respect of two recommendations which had target dates of September 
2019.

 Details of implementation progress are awaited in respect of six 
recommendations due for implementation by the end of October 2019.

 Two recommendations are not yet due for implementation, falling due in 
November and December 2019 respectively.

24.Internal Audit has reiterated the importance of setting realistic timescales for 
demonstrating recommendations implementation and work is ongoing to obtain 
status updates and confirm revised implementation dates for those outstanding 
recommendations where no information was provided.

Conclusion

25.A positive Head of Audit and Risk Management annual opinion has been 
provided, based on Internal Audit work carried out during the academic year 
ended 31st July 2019.

26.Delivery of the 2019-20 Internal Audit Plan is in progress and due for completion 
by 31st July 2020.  

27.High priority recommendations are subject to regular review and follow-up by 
Internal Audit and this has identified some slippage in implementation timescales.  
Revised target dates have been supplied in respect of several high priority 
recommendations and Internal Audit formal follow-up work will continue at regular 
intervals to confirm the implementation status.

Appendices

 Appendix 1 - Schedule of Relevant Internal Audit Work 2018-19
 Appendix 2 – Summary Outcomes of the School’s Finalised Audits
 Appendix 3 – Live High Priority Recommendations as at 31/10/19

Contact: Matt Lock, Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
E: Matt.lock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 12



Appendix 1

Schedule of Internal Audit Projects informing the Guildhall School Annual Audit Opinion 2018-19

Recommendations
Project Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Guildhall School Full Assurance Reviews

Student Affairs

Deferred from 2017-18 in agreement with School management, this audit focused on 
examination of the arrangements in operation within Student Affairs for the following:

 Clear aims of service provision, linked to strategic goals, and measurable 
objectives 

 Performance monitoring to evaluate whether delivery outcomes are as intended 
 Management of any services provided under contract to ensure that 

specifications are met 
 Financial management – controls over payments to ensure that these are in line 

with contract / on the basis of goods or services received and monitoring to 
ensure that expenditure is in line with budget 

 Periodic review / benchmarking of service provision and consideration of 
alternative delivery models, where appropriate 

Moderate 0 10 0 10

Strategic Planning

An examination of the Guildhall School’s strategic planning framework, including 
arrangements for stakeholder input, development of SMART objectives and related 
KPIs, delivery monitoring and on-going review.  Audit testing sought to confirm 
operation of the following:

Moderate 0 2 2 4

P
age 13



Recommendations
Project Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

 A strategic planning framework in operation which enables identification of long-
term objectives and prioritisation of activities to achieve these; 

 Stakeholder engagement in Plan formulation and arrangements for 
communication of Plan developments, to promote buy-in; 

 Development of SMART objectives and related KPIs to facilitate evaluation of 
Plan delivery; 

 Monitoring implementation of the Strategic Plan through appropriate forums; and 
 Mechanisms for review and update of the Strategic Plan to ensure it remains 

relevant and up to date. 

Income Generation

Maximising income from grant funding, student fees and other income is a priority for 
the School and this audit looked at the arrangements in place to seek opportunities 
to maximise income, secure sustainable sources of income and fully receive the 
income due.  Audit testing focused on arrangements in operation for the following:

 There is a defined strategy in place which sets out how the GSMD is to maximise 
its income.

 The income strategy in use supports the organisational ethos and is in 
accordance with the risk appetite.

 There are plans in place to seek opportunities for new income sources and to 
expand current income streams.

 The School’s capacity and resource utilisation are reviewed regularly to identify 
opportunities for new income generating activities.

 Professional advice is sought and acted upon to ensure that the School fully 
utilises financial support and incentives available as an Office for Student (OfS) 
registered provider.

Moderate 0 3 0 3

P
age 14



Recommendations
Project Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Academic Programme Development

This audit, undertaken in two phases, sought assurance that adequate arrangements 
are in place in respect of the areas set out below:

 A framework is in place which enables evaluation of the student programme offer 
- identification of potential new courses and elimination of existing ones where 
low enrolment is identified – ensuring it remains relevant and in line with the 
School’s Strategic vision and objectives. 

 Processes for developing new courses, including evaluation of financial viability. 
 Stakeholder engagement in Programme formulation and arrangements for 

communicating changes. 
 Performance monitoring, incorporating periodic review, to evaluate whether 

delivery outcomes are as intended. 

Substantial 0 0 0 0

School Audits Sub-total 0 15 2 17

Recommendations
Project Assurance 

Rating
Total
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Corporate Full Assurance Reviews

GDPR Readiness

The objective of the review was to provide an opinion on the CoL’s GDPR Project 
Plan and data privacy governance taking into account the implementation in 
progress, through:

Limited 2 0 5 7

P
age 15



Recommendations
Project Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

 Assessment of plans in place to address GDPR, including identifying responsibility 
for ensuring that all areas are covered and no gaps are left leading up to the 
implementation of the new rules;

 Overview of the main areas of risk in relation to the new GDPR regulation; and
 Assessment of general awareness amongst staff in relation to the new 

regulation.

Suppliers Financial Health and Resilience

Prior to letting supply, service and works contracts, the Chamberlain’s department 
Financial Services Division (Corporate Treasury Team, Research and Technical 
function) evaluates the financial standing of prospective contractors through analysis 
of their financial statements, on behalf of City Procurement. Appraisals are carried 
out where the projected spend is expected to be in excess of the Official Journal of 
the European Union (OJEU) procurement threshold. Appraisals may also be carried 
out in respect of other prospective contractors, where City Procurement have 
identified concerns. 

The purpose of the audit was to assess the adequacy of arrangements in relation to:

 Monitoring external supplier’s financial health and resilience;
 Implementing appropriate actions, where suppliers are deemed to be 

experiencing financial difficulties, placing their continued operation at risk; and
 Reporting to Senior Management and Members on supplier financial health.

Moderate 0 6 2 8

P
age 16



Recommendations
Project Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Commercial Manager Scorecard Procedures

The Corporate Supplier Performance Scorecard regime assesses performance in 
relation to ten corporate measures on an annual basis; the measures assess 
supplier performance in key areas including but not limited to compliance with 
corporate policies, performance against contract Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), 
and the effectiveness of risk management systems. A Scoring and Reporting tracker 
is in place to manage the timeliness of this activity. 

The purpose of the audit was to assess the adequacy of arrangements in relation to: 

 Determining an appropriate methodology for producing supplier scorecards; 
 Compiling supplier scorecards on a timely basis; 
 Determining and implementing appropriate actions, to address supplier 

performance issues; and 
 Reporting on supplier scorecards to Senior Management and Members. 

Moderate 0 6 4 10

Programmed Repairs and Maintenance

In March 2017, the Court of Common Council approved the award of two contracts 
for the supply of Building Repairs and Maintenance services to Skanska 
Construction UK Limited (Skanska). The contracts are for a five-year term (with an 
option to extend by a further 2 years), commencing July 2017 and cover the supply 
of the Mechanical and Electrical Maintenance and Building Fabric Repairs. 

The purpose of the audit was to obtain assurance over the adequacy of 
arrangements for:

Moderate 1 2 1 4

P
age 17



Recommendations
Project Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

 Compiling accurate and complete asset registers and programmed maintenance 
schedules;

 Ensuring full delivery of programmed maintenance schedules;
 Ensuring the only valid contract variations, known as Compensation Events, in 

respect of asset additions and disposals are agreed with Skanska and are 
reflected within both contractual documentation and programmed maintenance 
schedules; and

 Monitoring the relative proportions of programmed and reactive maintenance in 
order to maximise value for money.

Payroll

The objectives of this audit were to assess the adequacy of the arrangements in 
place in respect of the following:

 The controls in operation for the payment of staff are being adhered to;
 Final payments to leavers are accurately calculated;
 Payments and deductions are complete, accurate and properly authorised;
 Payments in respect of deductions are subject to check and reconciliation before 

the monies are paid over;
 Adequate access controls are maintained over the payroll system;
 Payroll checks are completed in-line with agreed procedures before the payroll 

run is completed;
 Monthly reconciliations are undertaken between the elements of pay and 

deductions, the General Ledger and the City’s bank account; and
 Management information is produced and is timely, accurate, relevant and 

sufficient for the needs of management.

Moderate 0 1 3 4

P
age 18



Recommendations
Project Assurance

Rating
Total 
Red

Total 
Amber

Total 
Green

Total

Pensions Administration

The objectives of this audit were to assess the adequacy of the arrangements in 
place in respect of the following:

 Staff act consistently in compliance with regulatory / legislative requirements and 
internal policies.

 There is on-going assurance that the City have adequate and up-to-date service 
continuity provision.

 Pension starter, leaver and amendment forms are appropriately captured on the 
system in a timely manner.

 Transfers in and out payments are correctly calculated and authorised prior to 
being processed.

 Only valid and accurate pension payments are made to pensioners and in a 
timely manner.

 Adequate access controls are in place to ensure staff have unique usernames, 
users have unique passwords which are subject to enforced changes.

 Only valid data is transferred to the pensions system.
 Performance of the team is monitored including responding to requests for 

information, general enquiries and issue of annual statements.

Substantial 0 1 0 0

Corporate Audits Sub-total 3 16 15 34

Total Recommendations 3 31 17 51

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 20



Appendix 2

School Audits Finalised since the September 2019 Internal Audit Update 

Academic Programme Development – Substantial Assurance

1. On the basis of audit testing outcomes, an effective framework is in operation at 
the School for evaluation of the student programme offer to ensure that it remains 
relevant and in line with the School’s Strategic vision and objectives. Audit testing 
confirmed that the framework includes mechanisms for identification of potential 
new courses and elimination of existing ones. 

2. The School’s Academic Regulatory Framework (ARF) sets out the arrangements 
for programme approval, amendment and review; control is primarily exercised in 
this area through Annual Programme Evaluations (APE), periodic review / 
revalidation, and via forums such as the Departmental Programme Board (DPB) 
and the Academic Board (AB). The effectiveness of the academic programme 
review and approval process forms part of an academic governance quinquennial 
review which is reported to the Board of Governors. 

3. The School has established clear processes for developing new courses, 
including evaluation of financial viability, as encapsulated in the ARF and the 
documented Programme Design and Approval procedures. The introduction of 
new programmes is not a common occurrence and, as such limited audit testing 
was possible in terms of practical application. Internal Audit performed a ‘process 
walkthrough’ in respect of development of the BA in Video Design for Live 
Performance (VDLP) and confirmed compliance with the approved 
arrangements.

 
4. Audit testing confirmed that stakeholder engagement is a key focus of 

programme formulation and programme evaluation. The School’s SMT, teaching 
staff and students are involved at programme formulation stage and, there is 
engagement with other stakeholders, such as prospective employers and alumni, 
as part of the proposal in principle, validation and revalidation stages. 
Additionally, validation and revalidation documents are scrutinised by a Panel 
made up of at least one external peer, a student, two members of the teaching 
staff of the School plus the Secretary and Dean of Students. Changes made to 
programmes must be approved by the DPB and AB before they are 
communicated to students. The School publishes the programme and module 
specification for each programme for the year (known as the Gold Copy) on the 
student portal and the School's website. 

5. Audit testing confirmed that the School’s Quality Assurance (QA) arrangements 
include regular and timely performance monitoring to evaluate whether 
programme delivery outcomes are as intended. The School’s QA process, 
incorporating APE and Revalidation exercises, is reviewed periodically by the 
Academic Assurance Working Group, reporting to the Board of Governors. 

6. Audit sample testing in respect of three current programmes confirmed that the 
performance monitoring process had been applied consistently and in line with 
approved arrangements. One further programme within the sample that was due 
for revalidation by the end of August 2019 had been given a one-year extension 

Page 21



Appendix 2

by the AB in recognition of exceptional circumstances. Internal Audit was advised 
by the School that the Higher Education sector quality expectation is for 
revalidation at least every six years and that it is intended that this will be met for 
the programme; no audit recommendation has been made on this basis. 

7. The Academic Board produces an annual report to the Board of Governors on 
academic strategy, standards, assurance and enhancement, as evidenced in 
respect of 2017-18 and interim updates for 2018-19 (the final report is due in 
November 2019). Internal Audit examination of Board meeting minutes confirmed 
that reports and action plans are received from the Academic Board which relate 
to continuous improvement of the student academic experience i.e. academic 
assurance - and student outcomes. It was noted that reporting in this area 
includes evidence from the School’s periodic review processes as well as the 
outcomes of external peer and professional reviews, facilitating the provision of 
assurance. 

8. No audit recommendations were made as a result of this audit.

Production Arts Student Petty Cash – Substantial Assurance

9. This audit was undertaken at the request of the School.  While the audit review 
identified a number of opportunities to strengthen controls in relation to the 
operation of Production Art student petty cash, considering financial materiality 
and the relative ease with which the recommendations made can be 
implemented, a ‘Green’ assurance rating has been given. 

10.The use of procurement cards to make purchases for production related supplies 
offers advantages over petty cash, for example providing a more secure means 
of holding funds and the facility to restrict the type of expenditure incurred. A 
recommendation has been made for the School to investigate the potential use of 
procurement cards by students for production-related supplies (Recommendation 
1). 

Issuing and Returning Petty Cash Funds 

11.On the basis of discussions with the Cashier, together with inspection of petty 
cash records and sample testing, adequate arrangements are in place to ensure 
that petty cash funds are only issued to students where approval has been 
granted by one of three Lecturers in Production Management. 

12.Further examination of petty cash records, including the petty cash tracker and 
petty cash log, together with sample testing, confirmed that adequate records are 
maintained to capture the detail of petty cash funds issued and returned, 
including signatures to reflect their movement. 

13.Whilst the Cashier has established arrangements for requesting the return of 
petty cash funds, audit testing identified that such actions are not taken on a 
timely basis which increases the risk of loss of petty cash funds; a 
recommendation has been raised (Recommendation 3). 

Page 22



Appendix 2

Verifying the Validity of Expenditure 

14.Sample testing determined that arrangements are in place to verify the validity of 
expenditure incurred. Students are required to prepare summaries of 
expenditure, supported by receipts, and setting out the balance of petty cash 
funds returned. Expenditure summaries are subject to review and approval by 
one of the three Lecturers in Production Management to confirm that funds have 
been spent for legitimate purposes. Audit sample testing identified inadequate 
transaction descriptions related to fuel, train travel, food and drink, and a 
recommendation has been made to improve transparency and facilitate 
management review (Recommendation 5). 

Reconciling Petty Cash Funds 

15.Audit testing confirmed that reconciliation of petty cash funds is undertaken on a 
weekly basis. Testing highlighted the following opportunities to strengthen 
internal control for which amber priority recommendations have been made 
(Recommendations 6, and 7): 

 The duties of managing and reconciling the petty cash float have been 
delegated to the Cashier and are therefore, not appropriately segregated, 
increasing the risk of error in administration; 

 A temporary loan of £5,000 from the Barbican Centre cash float to increase 
the value of the Production Arts Student float was not accounted for correctly; 
the fund balance should have been recorded as £16,800 as opposed to the 
£11,800 shown on the reconciliations; 

 There are no formal arrangements for approving increases to the value of the 
Production Arts Student petty cash fund, increasing the risk of 
misappropriation of petty cash funds. 

Recording Petty Cash Expenditure
 
16.Audit testing confirmed the adequacy of established arrangements for recording 

petty cash expenditure within Oracle R12; once approved by one of the three 
Lecturers in Production Management, electronic versions of the expenditure 
summaries are provided to the Management Accountant to prepare journals for 
input into Oracle R12. Audit sample testing confirmed that petty cash expenditure 
transactions had been accurately recorded in Oracle R12. 

Reimbursing Petty Cash Funds 

17.Assurance cannot be provided that petty cash funds are replenished on a timely 
basis. Delays in reimbursing the petty cash fund have impacted cash flow and led 
to the need to loan cash from the Barbican Centre float, an amber priority 
recommendation has been made in this respect (Recommendation 9). There are, 
however, established arrangements to ensure that petty cash funds are only 

Page 23



Appendix 2

reimbursed where approved by one of the three Lecturers in Production 
Management. 

Security of Petty Cash Funds 

18.Arrangements have been established to restrict access to petty cash funds to 
authorised personnel; unallocated funds are stored in the Finance Office safe and 
funds issued to students are required to be stored in safes located within the 
Student Production Office. A recommendation has been made to update the 
guidance to students to reflect the authorised arrangements for storage of floats, 
to minimise the risk to the security of cash (Recommendation 11). 

19.All audit recommendations were agreed by Management for implementation by 
December 2019 at the latest.

Page 24



Appendix 3

Guildhall School – Live High Priority Recommendations as at 31st October 2019

Audit Area & Outstanding Action Original 
Target Date

Latest 
Revised
Target 
Date

Recommendation 
Owner

Status Progress Comments

Satellite Sites

1. Collaboration Agreements: Development of 
full formal collaboration agreements (MoUs) 
with partnership satellite sites.

31/10/2017 30/11/2019 Nikki Shepperd,
Head of GYA 
Regional Centres

Partially 
Implemented

Implementation timescale further 
revised from September 2019 to 
November 2019. 

The last remaining Centre to sign 
its MOU is Taunton. Discussions 
are ongoing and it is hoped that the 
agreement can finally be signed at 
their next board meeting on 29 
November

Student Affairs

2. Budget Monitoring Records: Key budget 
monitoring outcomes and agreed actions to 
be recorded and circulated to facilitate 
tracking.

28/02/2019 30/09/2019 Sarah Wall, Group 
Accountant and 
Sarah Port, Senior 
Management 
Accountant.

Partially 
Implemented

Revised target timescale 
required for demonstration of full 
implementation.

No management comment supplied 
in respect of implementation 
slippage.

3. Review of Service Provision: Annual 
reporting to clearly articulate any reviews of 
service provision and development of an 
action plan to highlight the forward planning 
of any such reviews.

30/09/2019 31/10/2019 Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

No implementation progress 
update supplied.

P
age 25



Appendix 3

Audit Area & Outstanding Action Original 
Target Date

Latest 
Revised
Target 
Date

Recommendation 
Owner

Status Progress Comments

4. Service Provision Planning: Student Affairs 
annual report to reference the link to the 
School’s strategic objectives.

30/09/2019 31/10/2019 Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

No implementation progress 
update supplied.

5. Consistency of Reporting: Annual service 
reporting to include outcomes against 
relevant aims / objectives set at the start of 
the year. 

28/02/2019 31/12/2019 Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Partially 
Implemented

Not Yet Due.

6. Performance Monitoring: Future plans / 
goals identified in the Student Affairs annual 
reports to be translated into an action plan 
with target dates and responsible officers 
identified, to facilitate monitoring.

30/09/2019 31/10/2019 Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

No implementation progress 
update supplied.

7. Service Provision Objective-Setting: 
Evaluation of the School’s arrangements for 
objective-setting related to student support 
services against the approach taken by 
other Higher Education Institutions.

30/04/2019 
& when 

benchmarking 
data becomes 

available

31/10/2019 Sue Cowan, Head of 
Student Affairs

Not 
Implemented

No implementation progress 
update supplied.

Income Generation

8. Budget Monitoring Records: Records to 
include the budget holder’s explanations of 
budget variances, forecasts, key 
assumptions on the forecasts, and 
explanations for forecast changes, evidence 
of challenge and action points with 
deadlines.

31/07/2019 30/09/2019 Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

Revised target timescale 
required for demonstration of full 
implementation.

No management comment supplied 
in respect of implementation 
slippage.

P
age 26



Appendix 3

Audit Area & Outstanding Action Original 
Target Date

Latest 
Revised
Target 
Date

Recommendation 
Owner

Status Progress Comments

9. Financial Projection Deviations: Reporting 
on any deviations from the Business Plan to 
be added to the Management Information 
Dashboard.

30/09/2019  30/11/2019 Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

Implementation timescale 
revised from September 2019 to 
November 2019. 

The School has advised that a 
paper is being prepared for the 
November meeting of the Finance 
Committee and Governing Board 
setting out the latest five-year 
financial plan for the School. This 
will inform the annual submission to 
the Office for Students and includes 
a commentary on all significant 
variances. 

10. Baseline Performance & Targets: Baseline 
for the performance indicators, based on 
2018-19 actuals, to be added to the 
Management Information Dashboard. 

30/09/2019 30/11/2019 Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

Implementation timescale 
revised from September 2019 to 
November 2019. 

The School has advised that The 
Group Accountant is working with 
the Director of Advancement to 
draft a report for the November 
meeting of the Governing Board 
setting out the KPI's that the School 
will be tracking and reporting on 
going forward. In some cases the 
KPI's set out in the 2018 business 
plan have been superseded by 
subsequent events and this will be 
reflected in the November paper.

P
age 27



Appendix 3

Audit Area & Outstanding Action Original 
Target Date

Latest 
Revised
Target 
Date

Recommendation 
Owner

Status Progress Comments

Production Arts Students’ Cash Floats

11. Prompt Reimbursement of the Cash Float: 
agree set timeframes within which 
Production Lecturers are required to submit 
petty cash float electronic expenditure 
summaries for processing and chase on a 
timely basis if the summaries are not 
provided within the required timeframes.

30/11/2019 N/A Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

Not Yet Due

12. Cash Float Reconciliations: introduce a 
segregation of duties between managing the 
petty cash float and undertaking Production 
Arts Student cash float reconciliations.

31/10/2019 N/A Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

No implementation progress 
update supplied.

13. Amendments to the Cash Float: 
amendments to the Production Arts Student 
cash float to be approved independently of 
float management, and correctly accounted 
for in cash reconciliations.

31/10/2019 N/A Graeme Hood, 
Group Accountant

Not 
Implemented

No implementation progress 
update supplied.

In summary:

 There are thirteen live high priority recommendations as at the end of October 2019, an increase of three recommendations since the report to the 
September meeting of this Committee.  The three additional recommendations arose from the audit of Production Arts Students’ Cash Floats.

 Revised target timescales have been supplied in respect of three recommendations since the September 2019 meeting of this Committee as a result of 
implementation slippage (numbers 1, 9 and 10).

 Details of implementation progress are awaited in respect of six recommendations due for implementation by the end of October 2019 (numbers 3, 4, 6, 
7, 12 13).

 Revised target timescales are required for demonstrating full implementation in respect of two recommendations which had target dates of September 
2019 (numbers 2, 8).

 Two recommendations are not yet due for implementation, falling due in November and December 2019 respectively (numbers 5, 11).

P
age 28



Committee: Date:
Audit and Risk Committee of the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama

13 November 2019

Subject: 
Schedule for Risk Deep Dive review

Public

Report author:
Group Accountant

For Decision

Summary

At the time of writing the dates of the Audit & Risk Committee meetings for 2020 are 
currently being scheduled. This report sets out the proposed deep dive schedule for our 
risks during calendar year 2020, including provisional timings.

Recommendation(s)
Members are asked to approve this proposed deep dive schedule set out in the 
report.       

       

Main Report

Below is the proposed schedule of reports:

Nov 2019
 A cross cutting report setting out the risks around OfS Regulation. 

Jan 2020
 GSMD SUS 004: Failure to mitigate against a potential fall in EU student 

numbers as a result of Brexit

 GSMD CROSCH 007: Failure to manage fire safety and to comply with 
statutory requirements

Apr 2020
 GSMD SUS 001: Inability to Invest in Infrastructure and teaching spaces

Sep 2020
 GSMD CROSCH 006: Failure of Safeguarding Policies

Nov 2020

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



 GSMD SUS 002: Inability to deliver a balanced and sustainable model over 
the School’s business cycle

 GSMD CROSCH 001: Failure to manage H&S and to comply with statutory 
requirements

Contact:
Graeme Hood
T: 020 7638 4141 ext 7842
E:Graeme.hood@barbican.org.uk

Page 30

file:///O:/FINANCE_DIVISION/GSMD/Man%20Info/Risk%20Register/October%202018/Risk%20Register/Risk%20Register%20October%202018%20v%202.doc%23SUS2
file:///O:/FINANCE_DIVISION/GSMD/Man%20Info/Risk%20Register/October%202018/Risk%20Register/Risk%20Register%20October%202018%20v%202.doc%23CROSCH1


Committee
Audit & Risk Management Committee of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama

Date:
13/11/2019

Subject:
Deep dive into the continuing registration conditions for 
registration with the Office for Students 

Public

Report of:
Lynne Williams, Principal
Report author:
Katharine Lewis, Secretary & Dean of Students 
(sections A, B, C, E, F and G)
Graeme Hood, Group Accountant (section D)

For Information

Summary

The award of degrees is regulated by law.  Under the Higher Education & Research 
Act 2017 a new regulatory body for higher education, the Office for Students (OfS), 
was established.  All existing higher education providers (HEPs) were required to 
register with the OfS and the School submitted in July 2018 and was registered in 
April 2019.  However, registration is not a one-off event and HEPs are required to 
meet the ongoing conditions of registration.

The main report provides a description of how the School meets the ongoing 
conditions of registration referencing Part V of the  Regulatory framework for Higher 
Education in England available at: 
https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/media/1406/ofs2018_01.pdf

Recommendation

Members are asked to note the report.

Katharine Lewis
Secretary & Dean of Students
katharine.lewis@gsmd.ac.uk

Page 31

Agenda Item 7

https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/media/1406/ofs2018_01.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Continuing registration with the Office for Students 
 

General ongoing conditions of registration Also Initial 
condition 

Approved (fee 
cap) Notes 

A: Access and participation for students from all backgrounds 

Condition A1 An Approved (fee cap) provider 
intending to charge fees above 
the basic amount to qualifying 
persons on qualifying courses 
must: 

i. Have in force an access 
and participation plan 
approved by the OfS in 
accordance with the 
Higher Education and 
Research Act 2017 
(HERA). 

ii. Take all reasonable steps 
to comply with the 
provisions of the plan. 

 
Yes 


(higher fee limit) 

Relevant risks GSMD DDP 001 (Student 
recruitment and retention) and GSMD DDP 003 
(Profile in league tables) 
 
Access & Participation plan 2019 was submitted as 
part of the School’s initial registration and was 
approved by the OfS. 
 
2020-21 to 2024-25 five-year plan has been 
submitted and has been approved.  There are some 
specific monitoring requirements for the School as 
we are not aiming to achieve parity in all areas for 
all under-represented groups by the end of the five 
years.  This additional monitoring has also been 
applied to other conservatories. 
 
Plans can be viewed at: 
https://www.gsmd.ac.uk/policies 
 
The current monitoring cycle requires an annual 
submission in January in respect of the preceding 
academic year.  Whilst 2018/19 monitoring 
arrangements have yet to be confirmed by OfS, for 
2018/19 and 2019/20 it is expected that this cycle 
will be followed.  A report on the School’s access 
monitoring goes to the Board in February each year. 

Condition A2 
 

   Not applicable as A1 applies instead. 

 

P
age 33



B: Quality, reliable standards and positive outcomes for all students 
Condition B1 The provider must deliver well 

designed courses that provide a 
high quality academic experience 
for all students and enable a 
student’s achievement to be 
reliably assessed. 

 

Yes 

 

 

Relevant risks GSMD DDP 001 (Student 
recruitment and retention), GSMD DDP 003 
(Profile in league tables), and GSMD SUS 001 
(Infrastructure & teaching spaces) 

The Quality Assurance Agency has been appointed 
the Designated Quality Body (DQB) within the 
regulatory framework and the School is required to 
subscribe to the Quality Assurance Agency and pay 
the basic annual fee.  However, the School has also 
subscribed to the “quality insights” enhanced 
membership. 

The School will be required to engage with any 
reviews initiated by the QAA and the OfS will 
consider their findings.  The QAA will be looking for 
engagement with the advice and guidance of the 
UK Quality Code.   There are no reviews currently in 
the pipeline. 

The School is required to engage with the National 
Student Survey (NSS) and the OfS will consider the 
responses of students in coming to an assessment 
on quality, standards and outcomes. The School 
also has its own Whole School Survey (WSS) to 
engage student in providing feedback on the quality 
of their educational experience. 

 
The School has a reliable, fair, transparent and 
open admissions system – see 
https://www.gsmd.ac.uk/apply 
and monitors annually by key equality stands offers, 
acceptances and enrolments. 
The School has submitted and published its 
transparency data (see below). 
 
 

Condition B2 The provider must support all 
students, from admission through 
to completion, with the support 
that they need to succeed in and 
benefit from higher education. 

 
Yes 

 
 

Condition B3 The provider must deliver 
successful outcomes for all of its 
students, which are recognised 
and valued by employers, and/or 
enable further study. 

 
Yes 

 
 

Condition B4 The provider must ensure that 
qualifications awarded to 
students hold their value at the 
point of qualification and over 
time, in line with sector 
recognised standards. 

 
Yes 

 

Condition B5 The provider must deliver 
courses that meet the academic 
standards as they are described 
in the Framework for Higher 
Education Qualifications at Level 
4 or higher. 

 
Yes 

 
 

P
age 34



The OfS will consider the outcome indicators – 
continuation and completion rates, degree 
attainment, graduate employment. This data is 
collected via HESA and the Graduate Outcomes 
returns.  Student data returns were subject to an 
internal audit (completed June 2018). 

Sufficient and appropriate facilities, learning 
resources and student support services are also a 
consideration (particularly under B1). 
Relevant internal audits: 
Programme development (final report October 
2019) – condition B1 
Students affairs (final report February 2019) - 
condition B2  

The OfS will consider the level of complaints on the 
design and delivery of courses (via OIA – see 
condition C2 or form elsewhere, eg Competition and 
Markets Authority).   Student complaints and 
appeals data is reported to the Academic Board and 
the Board of Governors annually in November. 

The academic assurances, which need to be signed 
off annually, link to conditions B1 to B5, and are 
considered on behalf of the Board by the Academic 
Assurance Working Group.    As part of these 
assurances the Working group considers the use of 
external expertise in the development of its 
programmes and the use of external expertise (by 
way of External Examiners) in ensuring reliable, fair 
and transparent assessment and classification. 

 

P
age 35



Condition B6 The provider must participate in 
the Teaching Excellence and 
Student Outcomes Framework. 

 
No 

 

Relevant risk GSMD DDP 003 (Profile in league 
tables) 
 
School currently holds a TEF Gold award. It did not 
submit again in 2019.  It has indicated in its Access 
& Participation Plan for 2020 onwards its intention 
to participate in the 2020 TEF. 

C: Protecting the interests of all students 

Condition C1 The provider must demonstrate 
that in developing and 
implementing its policies, 
procedures and terms and 
conditions, it has given due 
regard to relevant guidance about 
how to comply with consumer 
protection law. 

Yes  

Relevant risk GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations) 

The School submitted a Consumer protection 
statement as part of its initial registration, and gives 
due regard to consumer protection issues.   

For enquirers, applicants and students, information 
about the contractual relationship with the School at 
each stage of the applicant/student journey is given 
at 
https://www.gsmd.ac.uk/about_the_school/shared_left_nav/how
_to_apply/higher_education_contract/  

Applicants who are made an offer are provided with 
the Offer handbook which as well as providing 
useful information about London, the School and 
becoming a student also provides key contract 
information about the School’s offer eg the “right to 
cancel”, when fees become due and how much they 
may change over the duration of a programme that 
is of more than one-year duration, and what 
changes they can expect to their programmes 
(particularly where over one year’s duration). 

The latter point is governed by regulation within the 
School’s Academic regulatory framework. 

There is both an Applicant complaint procedure and 
a Student complaints procedure. 

P
age 36



Condition C2 The provider must: 
i. Co-operate with the 

requirements of the 
student complaints 
scheme run by the Office 
of the Independent 
Adjudicator for Higher 
Education [OIA(HE)], 
including the subscription 
requirements. 

ii. Make students aware of 
their ability to use the 
scheme. 

No  

Relevant risks GSMD DDP 001 (Student 
recruitment and retention), GSMD DDP 003 
(Profile in league tables), and GSMD CROSCH 
003 (Legal obligations) 

(i) The School’s Academic Regulatory 
Framework includes details of all the student 
regulatory processes including student 
disciplinary matters, academic appeals, and 
student complaints.  Each process indicates 
the point of “completion of procedures” and 
when a matter can be referred to the 
OIA(HE). The School is a subscriber to the 
OIA(HE) and reports annually to the Board of 
Governors (in the AB annual report) on case 
work that has gone to the OIA 

In January 2018 the School’s Academic 
Regulatory Framework was reviewed by the 
OIA and the minor amendments 
recommended were implemented for the 
2018/19 academic year. 

(ii) Students are advised when they have 
exhausted all internal processes of their right 
to go to the OIA via a completion of 
procedures (CoP) letter.  The issue of a CoP 
letter is also reported to the Board annually. 

The OfS also monitors the number of cases 
upheld by the OIA. 

Condition C3 The provider must: 

(i) Have in force and publish 
a student protection plan 
which has been approved 
by the OfS as appropriate 
for its assessment of the 

Yes  

Relevant risks GSMD DDP 001 (Student 
recruitment and retention), GSMD DDP 003 
(Profile in league tables), and GSMD CROSCH 
003 (Legal obligations) 

 
The Student Protection Plan was considered by 
both the Academic Board and the Board of 

P
age 37



regulatory risk presented 
by the provider and for the 
risk to continuation of 
study of all of its students 

(ii) Take all reasonable steps 
to implement the 
provisions of the plan if 
the events set out in the 
plan take place. 

(iii) Inform the OfS of events, 
except for the closure of 
an individual course, that 
require the implementation 
of the provisions of the 
plan. 

Governors before submission to the OfS.  It was 
approved by OfS as part of our registration process 
(April 2019). It is also referenced in the letter to the 
OfS from the Board of Governors. 
 
It is published at  
https://www.gsmd.ac.uk/policies 
 
It was reviewed by officers for 2019/20 but no 
amendments were recommended. 
 
The Student Protection Plan makes reference to a 
programme closure procedure.  This was used for 
the MA in Training Actors and is in process for the 
BA in Performance & Creative Enterprise 
programme. 

D: Financial sustainability 

Condition D The provider must: 
i. Be financially viable. 
ii. Be financially sustainable. 
iii. Have the necessary 

financial resources to 
provide and fully deliver 
the higher education 
courses as it has 
advertised and as it has 
contracted to deliver them. 

iv. Have the necessary 
financial resources to 
continue to comply with all 
conditions of its 
registration. 

 

Yes  

Relevant risks GSMD SUS 001 (infrastructure), 
GSMD SUS 002 (sustainable business model), 
and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal obligations) 
 
The OfS describes financially viable as there being 
“no reason to suppose the provider is at material 
risk of insolvency within a period of three years from 
the date on which the assessment is made.” 
Financially sustainable means that the OfS “judges 
that the provider’s plans and protections show that 
is has sufficient financial resources to fulfil 
conditions D(iii) and D(iv) for the period of five years 
from the date on which the judgement is made.” 
 
The School reports on financial performance to 
each meeting of the Finance Committee and the 
Governing Board. It also reports every November 
on budget planning for the next financial year, 
including key assumption underpinning those plans, 
and provides a suite of documents including a five-

P
age 38



year financial forecast each year to the Office for 
Students. This forecast is considered by the 
Finance Committee and Governing Board prior to 
submission to the OfS. 
 
Where the School’s own financial forecasts do not 
provide sufficient evidence for the above, the OfS 
will seek a legally binding letter of support from a 
third party, such as a parent company. 
 
This condition also covers the payment of 
registration fees to the OfS and also unplanned or 
disorderly changes to course or activities.  
 

E: Good governance 

Condition E1 The provider's governing 
documents must uphold the 
public interest governance 
principles that are applicable to 
the provider. 

 
Yes 

 
 

Relevant risks GSMD SUS 003 (Corporate 
Governance) and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  

 
School's governing documents are its Instrument & 
Articles of Government. 
A management and governance self-assessment 
was submitted at initial registration with the OfS; this 
included the declaration that the CUC Higher 
Education Code of Governance would be the 
relevant code applicable to the work of the board to 
meet the public interest principles.   
 
Following submission of its registration documents, 
the OfS required a letter from the Board of 
Governors covering the Board’s autonomy and the 
financial support commitment from the City of 
London. 

 
 

P
age 39



Condition E2 The provider must have in place 
adequate and effective 
management and governance 
arrangements to: 

i. Operate in accordance 
with its governing 
documents. 

ii. Deliver, in practice, the 
public interest 
governance principles 
that are applicable to it.  

iii. Provide and fully deliver 
the higher education 
courses advertised. 

iv. Continue to comply with 
all conditions of its 
registration. 

 
 

 
Yes 

 
 

Relevant risks GSMD SUS 003 (Corporate 
Governance) and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  

 
A management and governance self-assessment 
was submitted at initial registration with the OfS. 
 
The Minutes of the Board of its Committee are 
required to be publically available except where 
such material is genuinely confidential – papers are 
available at: 
http://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx
?ID=387 
 
The Governance & Effectiveness Committee of the 
Board of Governors reviews annually the Board’s 
compliance with the CUC Higher Education Code of 
Governance. 
 
The Audit & Risk Management Committee and 
internal audit work are particularly key to meeting 
condition E2 which references a risk register, an 
internal audit plan and annual report, an Audit 
Committee annual report, and external auditor’s 
opinion.  
 
The work of the Remuneration & Nominations 
Committee is also relevant to condition E2 in 
respect of governor recruitment and induction, and 
the Remuneration Annual Report (the first report is 
due November 2019).   
 
 

P
age 40



Condition E3 The governing body of a provider 
must: 

i. Accept responsibility for 
the interactions between 
the provider and the OfS 
and its designated bodies. 

ii. Ensure the provider’s 
compliance with all of its 
conditions of registration 
and with the OfS’s 
accounts direction 

iii. Nominate to the OfS a 
senior officer as the 
‘accountable officer’ who 
has the responsibilities set 
out by the OfS for an 
accountable officer from 
time to time. 

No  

Relevant risks GSMD SUS 003 (Corporate 
Governance) and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  
 
Condition E3 (accountability) also makes reference 
to staff and senior staff pay and the need to make 
disclosures on this matter 

 The Principal is the accountable officer. 

Condition E4 The governing body of the 
provider must notify the OfS of 
any change of which it becomes 
aware which affects the 
accuracy of the information 
contained in the provider’s entry 
in the Register. 

No  

 
Relevant risks GSMD SUS 003 (Corporate 
Governance) and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  

 
To date no changes have bene notified to the OfS. 

Condition E5 The provider must comply with 
guidance published by the OfS 
to facilitate, in co-operation with 
electoral registration officers, the 
electoral registration of students. No  

Relevant risks GSMD SUS 003 (Corporate 
Governance) and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  
 
Currently the School actively encourages electoral 
participation by reminding students at the start of 
the academic year how to register to vote.  
Additional reminders, with deadlines for relevant 
elections, are also sent out.   

P
age 41



Going forward the School wishes to join the new 
JISC system but is awaiting implementation of 
secure data sharing software in order to subscribe 
to this service. 
 
At the request of the Cabinet Office, the School 
recently engaged, by way of a telephone interview, 
with IFF Research, who are evaluating Higher 
Education providers' roles in facilitating student 
electoral registration. 
 

F: Information for students 

Condition F1 The provider must provide to the 
OfS, and publish, in the manner 
and form specified by the OfS, 
the transparency information set 
out in section 9 of HERA. 

No  

Relevant risks GSMD DDP 001 (Student 
recruitment and retention), GSMD DDP 003 
(Profile in league tables), and GSMD CROSCH 
003 (Legal obligations) 

 
First transparency data return was submitted and 
published July 2019 ahead of deadline. 
Available at: 
https://www.gsmd.ac.uk/about_the_school/about_us/corporate_
documentation/#c31381 
 
Next transparency return is due January 2020. 

Condition F2 The provider must provide to the 
OfS, and publish, information 
about its arrangements for a 
student to transfer.  

No 

 

 

Relevant risks GSMD DDP 001 (Student 
recruitment and retention) and GSMD CROSCH 
003 (Legal obligations) 
 
The School already has a policy covering non-
standard entry including advanced standing see  
https://www.gsmd.ac.uk/fileadmin/user_upload/files/Policies_an
d_Reports/Non-standard_entry_policy_May_2019.pdf 
with cross reference from the How to apply web 
pages. 

P
age 42



This is due to be reviewed by the School’s 
Operations Board at its November 2019 meeting to 
clarify how the School assists a student transferring 
out of the School, and also to ensure there is a 
published explanation as to why advanced standing 
transfer is not permitted into some School 
programmes. 

 
Condition F3 For the purpose of assisting the 

OfS in performing any function, or 
exercising any power, conferred 
on the OfS under any legislation, 
the governing body of a provider 
must: 
i. Provide the OfS, or a person 

nominated by the OfS, with 
such information as the OfS 
specifies at the time and in 
the manner and form 
specified. 

ii. Permit the OfS to verify, or 
arrange for the independent 
verification by a person 
nominated by the OfS of 
such information as the OfS 
specifies at the time and in 
the manner specified and 
must notify the OfS of the 
outcome of any independent 
verification at the time and in 
the manner and form 
specified. 

 

No 

 

 

Relevant risks GSMD SUS 003 (Corporate 
Governance) and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  

 
To date, other than the letter from the Board of 
Governors to the OfS (February 2019), no 
information has been requested that falls outside of 
the standard statutory reporting requirements.  

P
age 43



Condition F3 
continued 

 
iii.    Take such steps as the OfS 

reasonably requests to co-
operate with any monitoring 
or investigation by the OfS, in 
particular, but not limited to, 
providing explanations or 
making available documents 
to the OfS or a person 
nominated by it or making 
available members of staff to 
meet with the OfS or a person 
nominated by it. 

 
The requirements in paragraphs 

(ii) and (iii) do not affect the 
generality of the requirement in 
paragraph (i). 

   

Condition F4 For the purposes of the 
designated data body (DDB)’s 
duties under sections 64(1) and 
65(1) of HERA, the provider must 
provide the DDB with such 
information as the DDB specifies 
at the time and in the manner and 
form specified by the DDB. 

 

No 

 

 

Relevant risks GSMD DDP 003 (Profile in league 
tables), GSMD SUS 003 (Corporate Governance), 
and GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal obligations)  

 
The Designated Data Body is currently HESA.  The 
timeliness of returns (and their sign-off)  to HESA is 
monitored by the Principal’s Office. 

G: Accountability for fees and funding 

Condition G1 A provider in the Approved (fee 
cap) category must charge 
qualifying persons on qualifying 
courses fees that do not exceed 
the relevant fee limit determined 
by the provider’s quality rating 

 

No 

 

 

Relevant risk GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  
 
The School’s currently quality rating is TEF Gold 
and the School charges the highest home UG fee 
permissible.  

 

P
age 44



and its access and participation 
plan. 

Condition G2 The provider must comply with 
any terms and conditions 
attached to financial support 
received from the OfS and UK 
Research and Innovation 
(UKRI) under sections 41(1) 
and/or 94(2) of HERA. A breach 
of such terms and conditions 
will be a breach of this condition 
of registration. 

 
No 

 
 

Relevant risk GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  
 
The conditions attached to financial support 
received from the OfS and UKRI are currently 
covered under the usual reporting requirements.  

Condition G3 The provider must pay: 
i. Its annual registration fee 

and other OfS fees in 
accordance with 
regulations made by the 
Secretary of State. 

ii. The fees charged by the 
designated bodies 

 
No 

 
 

Relevant risk GSMD CROSCH 003 (Legal 
obligations)  
 
The School pays fees to OfS, and HESA and the 
QAA under Condition G3(ii). 
There was a recent mix-up in relation to payment of 
the OfS fees resulting in a notification to the 
Chairman of the Board of Governors.  It is a 
requirement of that notification that the matter is 
reported to the Board at its next meeting in 
November 2019. 

 
 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 46



Committee(s):
Audit and Risk Management Committee
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of 
Governors of the Guildhall School of Music & Drama 

Date(s):
19/11/2019
13/11/2019

Subject:
Interpretation of Office for Students Guidance 
Concerning the Independence of Members

Public

Report of:
Comptroller and City Solicitor and Head of Audit and 
Risk Management
Report author:
Matt Lock

For Information

 
Summary

The Chairman of Audit and Risk Management Committee requested a report of the 
Comptroller and City Solicitor and Head of Audit and Risk Management to provide 
professional opinion in relation to the governance requirements of the Office for 
Students (OfS). Specifically, whether there were any criteria that would mean that 
Common Councillors serving on the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of 
Music and Drama would not be considered independent.

Having reviewed published guidance and sought further clarification from the OfS, it 
is the opinion of both the Comptroller and City Solicitor and the Head of Audit and 
Risk Management that there are no such criteria.

Recommendation(s)

Members are asked to note the report.

Main Report

Background

1. A question was raised at the September meeting of this Committee in respect of 
governance arrangements of the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama.  The central 
issue being that the Chairman should be an independent Member, and there was 
question amongst the Board as to whether Common Councillors can be 
considered independent. The Chairman requested that a joint report of the 
Comptroller and the Head of Audit and Risk Management be presented to the 
Committee in November 2019 so the matter could be formally discussed. 

Current Position

2. This report summarises guidance provided by the Comptroller and City Solicitor 
to officers of the Guildhall School and further clarification from the Office for 
Students (OfS), obtained by the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



Regulatory Framework

3. The OfS defines governance requirements within the following documents:

 OfS Regulatory Framework for Higher Education in England – Public 
Interest Governance Principles, stating that there must be at least one 
external member of the governing body who is independent of the provider

 Committee of University Chairs Higher Education Code of 
Governance, stating that the Audit Committee must be composed of a 
majority of Independent Members. “Independent” is used interchangeably 
with “External”, later defined in this document as non-executive

 Committee of University Chairs Handbook for Members of Audit 
Committees in Higher Education Institutions, clarifying Independence, 
excluding senior employees of the School and the Chair of the governing 
body. This guidance also states that the Chair of the Audit Committee 
should not ordinarily be a co-opted Member of the Committee as this may 
limit their ability to attend all meetings of the governing body, although 
arrangements can be made to resolve this if required.

Interpretation of the Regulatory Framework

4. The Comptroller and City Solicitor and Head of Audit and Risk Management, 
having separately considered the above guidance, concluded that Common 
Councillors would be considered as Independent within the regulatory framework.  
Furthermore, that, provided they are not the Chair of the governing body and no 
other material conflict exists, that Common Councillors may serve as Chair of the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Board of Governors of the 
Guildhall School of Music and Drama.

5. The Handbook for Members of Audit Committees in Higher Education Institutions 
provides examples of when Members would not be considered Independent, 
specifically where any material relationships and circumstances are likely or 
could affect a person’s judgment.  

6. The first example is where a person “has or has had within the last three years a 
material business relationship with the institution, either directly as partner, 
shareholder, director, consultant or senior employee of a body which has such a 
relationship with the institution”. Common Councillors are not considered to fall 
within these examples as they are not in an equivalent position.

7. The second example is where a person “has significant links with any of the 
institution’s auditors, advisers, officers or senior employees through involvement 
in other bodies”. Again, it is not considered that the role of Common Councillor is 
such that their relationship with other parts of the Corporation would bring them 
within this definition. The role of Members is unpaid and non-executive.

Page 48



Clarification from the OfS

8. The Head of Audit and Risk Management wrote to the OfS asking specifically:

i. If there is any further guidance or interpretation on the size, composition, 
diversity, skills mix and terms of office of members

ii. If there is a further definition of “independent” or “external” in relation to 
members, or any guidance/requirements as to the arrangements for 
making appointments of such members

iii. If there is any specific guidance/requirements on the composition of the 
Audit Committee and who may be eligible/ineligible to serve as Chair of 
the Audit Committee

The OFS responded to say:

We are in the process of preparing some further guidance in this area, and we 
are expecting this to be available to providers in the early part of 2020. However, 
at the moment we do not have additional guidance available to answer your 
specific questions. Our general advice is to ensure that you are able to 
demonstrate how any changes you make to your governance arrangements align 
with the Public Interest Governance Principles and remain appropriate for your 
provider. 

9. The Public Interest Principles require the Governing body to ensure that the size, 
composition, diversity, skills mix, and terms of office of the governing body is 
appropriate for the nature, scale and complexity of the provider.  It may be 
necessary for the Board of Governors to appoint additional members through 
open recruitment, broadening the spread and depth of skills and experience. 

Conclusion

10.There are no apparent criteria of the OfS that would determine that a Common 
Councillor, by virtue of them being a Member of the Court, is not considered 
independent to the Guildhall School.  Subject to other considerations of 
independence, there is nothing to prevent a Common Councillor who is a 
Member of the Board of Governors of the Guildhall School serving as Chair of the 
School’s Audit and Risk Committee.  The Board of Governors may, however, 
consider it necessary to recruit additional Members to meet the requirements of 
the Public Interest Principles.

Appendices
 None

Michael Cogher
Comptroller and City Solicitor

T: 020 7332 3699
E: Michael.cogher@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Matt Lock
Head of Audit and Risk Management

T: 020 7332 1276
E: matt.lock@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 49

mailto:Michael.cogher@cityoflondon.gov.uk
mailto:firstname.surname@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 129

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 153

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 157

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 159

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 183

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 185

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 191

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 193

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 197

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Minutes
	4 Outstanding Actions
	5 Internal Audit Annual Report
	Appendix 1 Nov 2019 Schedule of 2018_19 Audit Work
	Appendix 2 Nov 2019 Finalised Audit Outcomes
	Appendix 3 Oct 2019 Live High Priority Recommendations

	6 Deep Dive Schedule
	7 Deep dive into the continuing registration conditions for registration with the Office for Students
	Main report deep dive ongoing conditions of registration

	8 Interpretation of Office for Students Guidance Concerning the Independence of Members
	12 Non Public Minutes
	13 Risk Register
	Risk Register Annex 1
	Risk Register Annex 2

	14 AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT
	15 Office for Students Accounts Direction for 2018/19
	Accounts Direction Annex 1

	16 Draft Reports and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 July 2019
	2. GSMD_Assurance Letter of Representation 2019 - FINAL
	3. GSMD_reasonable assurance report 2019 FINAL
	4. Annex 1 to GSMD reasonable assurance report

	17 Annual Accountability Return
	18 Office for Students (OfS) Annual Accountability Return 2019 - Financial commentary
	Financial Commentary Annex 1
	Financial Commentary Annex 2

	19 Guildhall School Budget Report - 2020/21

